S S KOTHARI MEHTA
~ &COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Dreamfolks Services Private Limited

Report on the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of Dreamfolks Services Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), cash flow statement and the statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone Ind AS financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ( the Act) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2021, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
pelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 44 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, which describes the possible effects
of uncertainties relating to COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s operations and results as assessed by the
management. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Standalone Ind AS financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report but does not include the Standalone Ind AS financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
Auditors’ Report. Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.
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When we read Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant Rules issued
thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will abwvays detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone ind AS financizl

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance ‘with-SAs-we-exercise-professional judgment.and.maintain.professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks—and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher-than-for-one-resulting-from error,-as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal controk

e Obtain an understanding of intermat-control-relevant-to-the-audit-in-order-to-design-audit-procedures
that are approptiate inthetircumstances. Under section-143{3}(i} of the Act, werare=aizoresponsibie ior
expressing our opinion on whether tire company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

v Evaluate thé appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonarleness of accounting -
estitnates and related disclosures made by management.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020 and the transition
date opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2019 included in this Ind AS Standalone Ind AS financial statements,
are based on the previously issued statutory standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 & audited and reported by erstwhile statutory auditor Wadhwa
& Co., Chartered Accountants having firm registration number 021821N who have issued an unmadified audit
opinion vide audit report dated December 04, 2020 and September 14, 2019 respectively. Those reports are
furnished to us by the management and relied upon by us for the purpose of issuing this report on the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 as adjusted for the differences in the
accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to Ind AS, which has been audited by us.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a
statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by-the-Company-se-far-as-it
appears from our examination of those books;

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant Rules issued thereunder;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial
statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial

statements; and

g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2021 and hence not commented upon; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

i, The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There is no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

For S.S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N

SUNIL WAHAL
Partner

Place: New Delhi
Date: November 19, 2021
UDIN : 22087294AAAAAF9631
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Dreamfolks Services Private Limited dated
November 19, 2021 on its Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Report on the matters specified in paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order’)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
as referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section.

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year, the
frequency of which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
does not own any immovable property. Hence, reporting under clause 3(i) (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

ii. The Company’s activities does not give rise to inventory. Hence, provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of the clause
3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. According to the information, explanations and representations provided by the management and based
upon audit procedures performed, we are of the opinion that in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees, and securities, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Act.

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act, and the Rules framed

thereunder.

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under clause (d) of sub-section {1) of Section 148 of the Act for the
Company’s activities. Hence, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

vii.

a. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is generally regular in depositing its undisputed statutory dues
including Employees’ Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Investor Education and
Protection Fund, Income Tax, Custom Duty, Excise duty, Cess, Goods and Service Tax, and any
other material statutory dues ,as applicable, with the appropriate authorities during the year
and there are no such undisputed amounts payable which have remained outstanding as at
March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the books and records
examined by us, there are no dues in respect of Sales Tax, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
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Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax and Cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. In our opinion, on the basis of audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or borrowing to any banks and financial
institutions. The Company has not taken any loan or borrowings from the Government and has not

issued any debentures.

ix. tn our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer and term loans. Hence, reporting under
clause (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

X. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud
by the Company or on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

xi. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us the provisions of section
197 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

Xii. The Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

xiii. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us during the course of audit,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act, where applicable and
the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, as required
by the applicable Indian accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overail examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence not commented upon.

XV. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred in

section 192 of the Act.

Xvi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-I1A of the Reserve .
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY——————
Chartered Acc =
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N—— ]

SUNIL-WAHAL
Partner
Membership No. 087294

Place: New Delhi
Date: Noveinber 19, 2021
UDIN: 22087294AAAAAF9631
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Dreamfolks Services Private Limited dated
November 19, 2021 on its Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements of
Dreamfolks Services Private Limited (" the Company “) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control with reference to standalone Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India” (ICAI). These
Responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial Controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, Including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely Preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Act.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Ind AS based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial centrols,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls

operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financia!
controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contro}
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone-ind-AS-financial-statements, - whether-due-tofraudsar

error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have-obtained-is-sufficient and-appropriate-to provide a-basis-forouraudit

opinion on the company’s internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements

A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to ind AS financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone
Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
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Company 's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that:

a) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone
Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and

¢) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
dispesition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS financial

statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements,
including the possibility of cellusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements may become Inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

fn our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference
to Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal controls with reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finanzial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of [ndia.

For S.S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 000756N

MEHqu,
o ]

(o

SUNIL WAHAL
Partner
Membership No. 087294

Place: New Delhi
Date: November 19, 2021-
UDIN: 22087294AAAAAF9631
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Dreamfolks Services Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Notes i L anar o
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
ASSETS
Non - current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A 3830 52.89 3551
Capital work in progress 3B 043 6.40 -
Intangible assets 4 261 1.18 0.05
Right of use assets 3A 73.66 . -
Investment property 5 271.01 -
Financial assets
Investments 6 005 0.05 0.05
Loans 7a) 24.72 25.82 18.10
Deferred tax assets (net) 10 7.75 2104 35.46
Other non-current assets 11a) 186.61 10572 68.66
Total non - current assets 605.14 213.10 157.83
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 12 395.49 685.24 456.08
Cash and cash equivalents 13 99.92 32125 8728
Other bank balances 14 - - 70.06
Loans 7b) 28.86 28.56 9.49
Other financial assets 8 22.05 - -
Other current assets 11b) 19.04 56.81 94.59
Current tax assets 9 54.55 72.65 16.28
Total current assets 619.91 1,164.51 733.78
Total assets 1,225.05 1,377.61 891.61
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 15 47.50 47.50 47.50
Other equity 16 595.57 607.70 294.24
Total equity 643.07 655.20 341.74
Liabilities
Non - current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 12.85 20.10 9.64
Other financial liabilities 18a) 63.33 - -
Provisions 19a) 18.36 22.24 10.77
Total non-current liabilities 94.54 42.34 20.41
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 21 211.81 - -
small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 21 9710 561.37 38196
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 18b) 44 97 64 07 103.40
Other current liabilities 20 130.14 53.54 43.59
Provisions 19b) 342 1.09 0.51
Total current liabilities 487.44 680.07 529.46
Total equity and liabilities 1,225.05 1,377.61 891.61
Significant Accounting Policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For S.S. KOTHAR]I MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Sunil Wahal
Partner

Membership No: 087294

Place: New Delhi

Date: November 19, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Dreamfolks Services Private Limited
CIN : USI‘)IJ?BUEISI"I‘{'WHSI

“

b

ratha Peter Kallat

anaging Director
JIN 06849062
Place: New Delhi

Date: November 19, 2021

Chief Financial Officer

M.No.: F401518
Place: New Delhi

Date: November 19, 2021 Date: November 19, 2021

Mukesh Yaday
Director

DIN: 01105819
Place: New Dethi

Date: November 19, 2021

ingobier rwal
Company Secretary
M No.: A44096
Place: New Delhi




Dreamfolks Services Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

For the year

For the year

Particulars Notes ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Income
Revenue from operations 22 1,056.33 3,670 43
Other income 23 24.74 7.64
Total income 1,081.07 3,678.07
Expenses
Cost of Services 24 87541 2,995.63
Employee benefits expenses 25 126.39 17928
Finance costs 26 745 7.05
Depreciation and amortization expenses 27 15.54 1588
Other expenses 28 58.29 44 66
Total expenses 1,083.08 3,242.50
Profit / (loss) before tax (2.01) 435.57
Tax Expense 29

Current tax - 103.18

Deferred tax (credit)/charge 12.49 15.56
Total tax expenses 12.49 118.74
Profit / (loss) after tax for the year (14.50) 316.83
Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit and Loss

- Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit obligation 317 (@.s1)

- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss (0.80) 1.14
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 2.37 3.37)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (12.13) 313.46
Earnings / (Loss) per equity share 30
Basic (0.28) 6.06
Diluted (0.28) 6.06
Face Value per share 10 10

3

Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For S.S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants
FRN - 000756N

Sunil Wahal

Partner

Membership No: 087294
Place: New Delhi

Date: November 19, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Dreamfolks Services Private Limited

siberatha Peter Kallat

Managing Director

DIN: 06849062

Place: New Delhi

Date: November 19, 2021
Ll

N 0

-

siya Diwaan

Chief Financial Officer
Place: New Delhi
Place: New Delhi

Date: November 19, 2021

Date: November 19, 2021

Mukesh Yaday
Director

DIN: 01105819
Place) New Delhi

CIN : U51909D1.2008PTC177181 QA

| oli Aggdrwal il

Company Secretary | 7,
Place: New Delhi "7 -
Place: New Delhi g3 : |

Date: November 19, 2021

* Y




Dreamfolks Services Private Limited
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021
All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A. Cash flow [rom operating activities
Profit / (loss) before tax (2.01) 435.57
Other Comprehensive income before tax 317 4510)
Adjustments :-
Depreciation / Amortization 1554 1588
Finance expenses on amortisation of security deposits 344 339
Assels written off 141 -
Provision for expected credit Loss 006 (195)
Interest expense on lease 120 -
Finance Costs 267 347
Interest Income (13 89) 377
Profit on disposal of Investment (9 06) -
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (0.03) (0.01)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 2.50 448.07
Adjustments for working Capital changes:
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other financial liabilities 279 19) 14006
(Decrease) / Increase in provisions and other payables (14 12) 22 00
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other financial assets 28704 (257 39)
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets 48 21 3118
Change in working capital 41.94 (64.15)
Cash generated from operating activities post working capital changes 44.44 383.92
Income Taxes (Paid)/Received 1812 (159 55)
Net Cash generated from Operating activities (A) 62.56 224.37
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Paid towards purchase of property, plant & equipment and (359 03) (71.25)
mvestment property
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 045 001
Proceeds from sale of investment property 76 16 -
Proceeds from / (Investment in) bank deposits - 70.06
Interest Received 13.89 377
Net Cash generated / (used in) Investing Activities (B) {268.53) 2.59
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borrowings (1072) 1048
Payment of lease liabilities {197 -
Finance Cost paid (2.67) (347
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C ) {15.36) 7.01
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ({ A+B+C) (221 33) 23397
Cash and cash equivalents (Opening Balance) 32125 8728
Cash and cash equivalents (Closing Balance) 99 92 32125
Change in Cash & Cash Equivalents (221.33) 233.97
Notes:
3 Asat As at
1 Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash on hand 005 0.09
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 99 87 321 16
Net Cash & Cash Equivalents 99.92 321.25
2 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities:
Particulars o INeEAsn flow Non cash changes Ason
April 1, 2019 changes Marveh 31, 2020
WNon-current Borrowings ineluding
current maturities (Note 17) 2043 1048 - 3091
Lease liabilities - -
Particulars Ason Net.cash low Non cash changes aien
Murch 31, 2020 changes Mareh 31, 2021
Non-current Borrowings including
current maturities (Note 17) 3091 (10 72) - 2019
Lease liabilities (196} 76.39 7443
Significant Accounting Policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standal fi ial st
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Date November 19, 2021
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Dreamfolks Services Private Limited

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up*

As at April 1, 2019

Changes in equity share capital during the year

As at March 31, 2020

Changes in equity share capital during the year

As at March 31, 2021

Amount

47.50

47.50

47.50

* Impact of reduction in Face value of shares from INR 10 to INR 2 as a result of sub division of shares on Septembe'r 10, 2021, not considered

B. Other equity

Particulars

Reserve & Surplus (A)

Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

(B)

Items that will not be
reclassified to Profit and
Loss

Remeasurement Gain &
Losses on defined benefit
obligation

Total
(A+B)

As at April 1, 2019 294.67 (0.43) 294.24
Movement during the year
-Profit for the year 316.83 316.83
-Other Comprehensive [ncome, net of Income tax (3.37) (3.37)
As at March 31, 2020 611.50 (3.80) 607.70
Movement during the year
-Profit for the year (14.50) (14.50)
-Other Comprehensive Income, net of Income tax 237 2.37
As at March 31, 2021 597.00 (1.43) 595.57
Significant Accounting Policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For S.S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants
FRN —000756N

Sunil Wahal

Partner

Membership No: 087294
Place: New Delhi

Date: November 19, 2021
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Managing Director
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Chief Financial Officer
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Place: New Delhi

Date: November 19, 202}

oard of Directoys of
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Mukesh Yadav
Director
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Place: New Delhi
Date: November 19, 2021
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in INR millions unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

Dreamfolks Services Private Limited (the ‘Company’) primarily integrates global card networks operating in India, card issuers, and corporate
clients including airline companies with various airport lounge operators, transport operators and other airport service providers on a unified
technology platform. The Company facilitate customers of Clients access to the airport related services including (i) lounges, (ii) food and beverage
(i) spa, (iv) meet and assist, (v), airport transfer (vi) transit hotels /nap room access, and (vii) baggage transfer, (collectively, the Services).]

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in India under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the
Company is located at 22, DDA Flats, Panchsheel Park, Shivalik Road, Malviya Nagar New Delhi- 110017 India.

These financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on November 19, 2021.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company is prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (as
amended from time to time). presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule I1I to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule
IIT), as applicable to the financial statements and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Pursuant to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Second Amendment Rules, 2015, the Company has voluntarily adopted March 31,
2021, as reporting date for the first-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) and consequently April 1, 2019 as the transition date
for preparation of financial statements. The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021, are the first financials, prepared in
accordance with Ind AS. Up to the financial year ended March 31, 2020, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with
accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (“previous GAAP” or “Indian GAAP™). For preparing these financial statements, opening balance sheet was prepared as at April 1,
2019 i.c. the date of transition to Ind AS. The figures for the previous periods and for the year ended March 31, 2020, have been restated,
regrouped, and reclassified, wherever required to comply with Ind AS and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. For details, refer to Note 32

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and accrual method of accounting, except otherwise stated. The
financial statements arc presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, expect where otherwise indicated.

The accounting policies as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied, by the Company, to all the periods
presented in the said financial statements.

2.2 Critical Accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the principles of Ind AS requires the management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end
of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in
future periods.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. In particular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical Judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

There are no assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial
year except for as disclosed in these financial statements.

Information about significant areas of estimation /uncertainty and judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the financial statements are as follows: -

Impairment of financial assets

and estimated future economic conditions. The Company considered current and anticipated future economic conditions rclatlir}g'l',_(; ind
. . . L)
Company deals with and the countries where it operates. /2

The Company determines the allowance for credit losses based on policy for expected loss provision based on experiential realisations. current
frjcs-the

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

\ J =
The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 in the prcptlmliurl\ffr"/:,ﬁm—ﬁilgih' al
statements including the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non-financial assets. In developing the aﬁsumpliuﬁ,'\;--rcizﬁiu“\ 0 the
possibleifuture uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company has, at the date of approval of these financial
/stalemenisused.internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related information and economic forecasts and expects
- _;ﬁal the carrying dmount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements may differ from that
.'l:SII,IiI_l]_l_lllt_:l{} asiat "J[hi: ']dalc of approval of these financial statements.




| ‘the measur

T'he €ompany-ieasures financial instruments such as derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. /=)

H,]

Dreamfolks Services Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in INR millions unless otherwise stated)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the group. The useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment are determined by the management based on technical assessment by internal team and external advisor. The charge in respect
of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its
life. The Company believes that the useful life best represents the period over which the Company expects to use these assets.

Contingent liabilities

Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the
Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

Income Taxes

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews
at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could
lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial statements.

Leases

Judgment required to ascertain lease classification, lease term, incremental borrowing rate, lease and non-lease component and impairment of
ROU

3.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
3.1 Current versus non- current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the financial statements of assets and liabilities based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:
e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
e [tis expected to be realised within twelve mouths after the reporting period, or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at lcast twelve months after the reporting
period. All other assets are classified as non-current.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
s [tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There isino unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company clagsifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company
has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

3.2 Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Holding Company’s functional currency. For each entity, the Company
determines the functional currency and items included in the summary statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entities forming part of Company operates and is normally
the currency in which the entities forming part of Company primarily generates and expends cash.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Foreign currency rate fluctuations relating to
monetary assets and liabilities are restated at the year-end rates. The net gain or loss arising on restatement/ settlement is recorded in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange
rate prevalent at the date of the transaction. The related revenue and expense are recognized using the same exchange rate.

3.3 Fair value measurement

Fair, value)isithe 1'1I|'i'c}: that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between meu'kcl_f_h‘.u"[igi]‘)’anl&t}i[
sipent/dafe. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Ifability-takes

v f
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place either:
1. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
2. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability The principal or the most advantageous

market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

1. Level I — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

2. Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly

observable.
3. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers may be required for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided on the basis of nature
of transaction and complexity involved. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained.

At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-
assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the team verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing
the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. A change in fair value of assets and liabilities is also
compared with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

. On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment recognised as at
April 1, 2019 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property,
plant and equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including
regular servicing, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major
components having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items.

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes
(other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended
use, other incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready for
its intended use. Subscquent expenditure on fixed assets atter its purchase / completion is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase
in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. The Company depreciates property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically at each
financial year end. The gain or loss arising on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between sale
proceeds and carrying value of such item and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. pEESERe
ACEs BN\

3.5 [Intangible assets /

On transition to Ind AS, company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as|t i}gal' l
measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such intangible assets. \'-\ SN

N, .
Design, development and software costs are included in the balance sheet as intangible assets when it is probable that associated I'Llll'u"c-uaam-)ﬁﬁc
benefits would flow to the Company. All other costs on the aforementioned are expensed in the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment. The estimated useful life of an identifiable
/- intangibl¢ assétis based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as

the stabiligy, ui"{hc" industry and known technological advances). Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each
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financial year end.

Amortisation method: The Company amortizes intangible assets with a future useful life using the straight-line method over following period:
Class of assets Useful life
Computer Software 3 years

3.6 Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation is provided on the written down value method. The estimated useful life of each asset as prescribed under Schedule 1T of the

Companies Act, 2013 and based on technical assessment of internal experts (after considering the expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence and understanding of past practices and general industry experience) are as depicted below:

Particulars Estimated useful life Method of depreciation
Land and buildings . 60 . WDV
| Furniture & fixtures . 10 - WDV
Computers i3 WDV
Office equipment 3-5 Years I WDV
Motor vehicles 8-10 Years . WDV

The residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.Lease hold Improvements are
amortised on a straight line basis over the lease period.

3.7 Leases

The Company’s leased assets primarily consist of leases for office space. The Company asscsses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception
of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

= the contract involves the use of an identified asset

=  the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease; and

®  the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

1. Right of use assets

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the [ease payments as an operating expense on a straight -line basis over the term of the
lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflect that the Company exercise a purchase option. The Company
applies Ind AS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss as described in the
accounting policy below on “Impairment of non- financial assets”.

2. Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the Company’s incremental
borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset (or in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero) if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination or a purchase option. The interest cost on lease liability (computed using effective interest method), is expensed in the statement of
profit and loss.

Lease liability and right-of-usc assct have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing

cash flows. The Company has applied a practical expedient wherein the Company has ignored the requirement to separate non- lease _components

(such as maintenance services) from the lease components. [nstead, the Company has accounted for the entire contract as a sln;,ln, I;.w;L ﬁlmd!' .
‘.

3.8 Revenue recognition l [

The Company has revenue from its clients. The Company recognizes revenue when it satisfies performance obligations umk\r the, ks of :Z x,}
contracts, and control of its services is transferred to its client’s users in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company U(p-fph tn—rct.e;w;,

. erm its clientin exchange for those services. This process involves identifying the client contract, determining the performance obligatiots.inthe

- mnlrau clérmiming the contract price, allocating the contract price to the distinct performance obligations in the contract, and recognizing
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revenue when the performance obligations have been satisfied.

The Company through its platform allows transactions between the consumers of its clients and service operators enlisted with the platform. The
Company earns revenue when the consumers of its clients utilize services such as Lounge Access, Meet and Assist, Airport Transfers, Food and
Beverages, Door-step Baggage and Spa & Wellness either through the DreamFolks App, DreamFolks Card, Issuer’s Card, Issuer’s Website,
Issuer’s web or mobile Application (App) or Interactive voice response (IVR).

Revenue is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this
is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due

Cash received before the goods and services are delivered is recognised as a contract liability.

Financing Components: The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or
services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction
prices for the time value of money

Other income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.9 Retirement and other employee benefits
Employee benefits include provident fund, employce state insurance scheme, gratuity and compensated absences.
Long-term employee benefits:

Defined contribution plans: The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined
contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the
employees.

Defined benefit plans: The Company has Defined Benefit Plan in the form of Gratuity. Gratuity fund is recognised by the Income-tax authorities
and administered through an Insurance Fund. Liability for Defined Benefit Plans is provided on the basis of valuations, as at the balance sheet
date, carried out by an independent actuary. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuary using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using discount
rate (interest rates of government bonds) that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the gratuity. Remeasurement gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in ‘Other Comprehensive Income” (net of taxes) in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance
sheet. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee Benefits Expense’.

Short-term employee benefits: ’>

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised
during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are
expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service. The cost of short-term
compensated absences is accounted as under:
= incase of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future compensated
absences; and
* incase of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

3.10 Share based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined
by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in share Options outstanding reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in
employee benefits expense.

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the »\qu\L iu_ RILH :
vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The Latgmenft, bf ﬁ‘rqf};”-:
and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and Lnéfn['lhal |

1

is recognised in employee benefits expense. \ =\

"Whm the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms had not ht.tcyl nulmrcd
the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of-the-share-
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based payment transaction or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the
entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

The Company has chosen first time adoption exemption and has not applied Ind AS 102 to equity instruments that vested before date of transition
to Ind AS.

3.11 Taxes

3. Current income tax

Current tax is the tax payable on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the Statement of Profit
and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside financial statements profit and loss is recognised outside financial statements profit and
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the statement of assets and liabilities after off-setting advance tax paid and
income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units intends to settle the asset and liability on a net

basis.

4. Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax conscquences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

3.12 Segment reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an entity where discrete financial information is evaluated regularly by the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM™) in deciding allocation of resources and in assessing performance. The Company’s Managing Director is its CODM.
The Company’s CODM reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis for the purposes of making operating decisions, allocating
resources, and evaluating financial performance. Qur business activity primarily falls within a single business and geographical segment, hence,
the disclosure of segment-wise information is not applicable under Ind AS 108- 'Operating Segments'.

3.13 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. i')i|l|£¢(;_!f{1:a’1.ﬁ1'}“1§s: er
share is computed using the weighted-average number of equity and dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the period, €8¢eptivhe ¢ifie
P L

results would be anti-dilutive. =2/

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for an{y,_
shares issues including for change effected prior to the approval of the financial Information by the Board of Directors. o)

3.14 Provisions and contingent liabilities

1. Provisions

"
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Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one are more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or is a present obligation that arises from
past event but is not recognised because either it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed and not recognised

3.15 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilitics at fair value through statement of profit and loss
are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

1. Financial assets
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at tair value through statement of profit
and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery

of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market-place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.c.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

a. Classification and subsequent measurement:

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss (except for debt investments
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition) (i) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and (ii) the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except for debt
investments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition) (i) the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and (ii) the contractual terms of the instrument give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost
or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans and other financial assets are
classified for measurement at amortised cost.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised cost of an instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

b.  Equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 at fair value, with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

¢.  Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Company’s financial statements of assets and liabilities) when: 1) The rights to receive cash flows trom the asset have expired,
or ii) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it ev valuates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially d!}mi
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the mu’ (Bl thc
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the absodiate
measurced on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 2l

= NOL\ \ . e -\ 1 )
ginvolyement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the c}r1g|nal«ga,;::,wng.,mﬁ@l’of
e W Y,
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the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

d. Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through
profit and loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For
all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those financial assets are measured at lifetime ECL. The changes (incremental or reversal) in
loss allowance computed using ECL model, are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss.

‘The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit
impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data:
*  significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
= abreach of contract such as a default or past dues;
=  the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise; - it is probable that
the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or
=  the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables which do not contain a significant
financing component. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime impairment pattern at each balance sheet date, right from its initial recognition.

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company
is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected
credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward looking information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
= theborrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or
= the financial asset is more than past due.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (cither partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Company determines that the counterparty does not have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

\

/
{

2. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss, loans and borrowings, payables,
as appropriate.

a. Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include Borrowings, Other Financial Liabilities, Trade Payables and Leases.

b.  Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. For financial liabilities that
are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortized cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and
losses are determined based on the amortized cost of the instruments and are recognized in ‘Other income’. The fair value of financial liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For
financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPI,. the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or I(__Jsﬁij(;s'ﬂ? { iSregognized
in profit or loss. ) (20" RSO

¢.  Derecognition

The Company derecognizes financial liahilitics when. and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
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difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in statement
of profit and loss.

d.  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

3.16 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. If there is any indication of impairment based on internal / external factors,
an impairment loss is recognised, i.c. wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are Companyed together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each
CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or

CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based
on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets (e.g., office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows. To
determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there
is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

3.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing cost consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

3.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the statement of assets and liabilities comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis (if any) as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

3.19 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby loss for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.20 Events occurring after the balance sheet date

Based on the nature of the event, the Company identifies the events occurring between the balance sheet date and the date on which the financial
statements are approved as ‘Adjusting Event” and “Non-adjusting event’. Adjustments to assets and liabilities are made for events occurring after
the balance sheet date that provide additional information materially affecting the determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at
the balance sheet date or because of statutory requirements or because of their special nature. For non-adjusting events, the Lump,]n;ﬂ' Y provnde
a disclosure in the financial statements considering the nature of the transaction. N

3.21 Functional and presentation currency

J
The Company has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates, i.c., th Juimetivnal -.A‘tncm.\ to

be Indian Rupees (INR). The financial statements are presented in [ndian Rupees, which is the Company's functional and ptcxu]mmin efirrency.
All.amounts have been rounded to the nearest million up to two decimal places, unless otherwise stated. Consequent to roundiitg-off: e numbers
pn.sunled Ihrn‘uglmul the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely reflect the absolute amounts.
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3A Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of use assets

Property Plant and Equij

Right of use assets

Particulars Land and buildings Furniture & fixtures Computers Office equipments Motor vehicles Total Lease hold Buildings
As at April 1, 2019 - - 8.22 6.96 146 47.63 64.27 -
Additions 2079 - 035 141 033 1028 3316 -
Disposals - - - (003) - - (003) -
As at March 31, 2020 20.79 - 3.57 8.34 1.79 5791 97.40 -
Additions = 1367 047 79 002 1920 7520
Disposals/Transferred {20 79) . (3.28) (0.57) (0.05) (29 99) .
As at March 31, 2021 - 13.67 5.53 3.01 57.88 56,61 7520
Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 1, 2019 - - 3.34 4.31 0.67 2044 28.76 -
Charge for the year 0.99 . 1.34 2.03 049 1093 1578 -
Disposals - . - {0.03) - - (0.03) -
As at March 31, 2020 0,99 - 4.68 631 .16 31.37 44.51 -
Charge for the year 057 D62 136 131 0,60 516 1262 154
Previous Year Adjustment - - 002 004 006 {001) 011 -
Assets sold/transferred {1.56) - (4.03) {3 16) {0.55) 037 (8.93) -
As at March 31, 2021 - 0.62 203 4.50 127 39.59 48.31 1.54
Net block

As at April 1, 2019 ~ - 4.88 2.65 0.79 27.1% 3551 -
As at March 31, 2020 9.0 = 389 303 0.63 26.54 52.89 -
As at March 31, 2021 - 13.05 L..mm 103 1.74 17.99 35.30 73.66
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3B

Capital Work in progress

Gross block

As at April 1,2019
Additions

Capitalised during the year
As at March 31, 2020
Additions

Capitalised during the year
As at March 31, 2021

Intangible assets

Gross block

As at April 12019
Additions

Disposals

As at March 31 2020
Additions

Disposals

As at March 31 2021

Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 1 2019

Charge for the year
Disposals

As at March 31 2020
Charge for the year
Previous Year Adjustment
Disposals

As at March 31 2021

Net block

As at April 12019
As at March 31 2020
As at March 31 2021

Software

0.19
123

1.42
241

3.83

ﬂ

0.14
010

024
0.98
0.00

=
N
N

0.05
118
2.61
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5 Investment Property

Building Land Total
Gross block
As at March 31 2020 ~ .
Additions - 45812
Disposals/Transferred 1924 (205 93)
As at March 31 2021 19.24

Accumulated Depreciation

As at March 31 2020 - -
Charge for the year 040 040
Accumulated Depreciation -
Assets sold/transferred - -
As at March 31 2021 0.40 0.40
Net block

As at March 31 2020 - - -
As at March 31 2021 18.84 252.17 271.01

Fair value of investment properties

Particulars As at As at As at
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1,2019

Building 2087 = =

Land 25236 : .

Estimation of fair value
The company obtains independent valuations for its investment property at least annually The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties
The fair value of investment properties is based on the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017
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6 Other Investments

Investment in equity instruments of Subsidiaries
Unquoted

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
April 1, 2019

Dreamfolks Hospitality Private Limited 9,000 Equity shares (March 31, 2020: 9,000 Equity 0.05 0.05 0.05
shares & April |, 2019: 9,000 Equity Shares) of face value of INR 10/- each)
0.05 0.05 0.05
Aggregate amount of quoted investments - - -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments = - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 0.05 0.05 0.05
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investiments = = -
As at As at As at
7 Loans March 31. 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
a)  Non - current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Security Deposits 24.72 2582 18.10
24.72 25.82 18.10
b)  Current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Security Deposits* 28.86 28.56 9.49
28.86 28.56 9.49
* Includes related party balance of INR 62.5 million (March 31, 2020: INR 62.5 million and April 1, 2019: INR 62.5 million) net of IND AS impact,
As at As at As at
8 Other financial assets March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Other receivables 22,05 - -
Unbilled Receivable = - -
22.05 . -
As at As at As at
9 Current tax assets (net) March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Income tax assets
Advance tax and TDS recoverable 54.55 175.83 102,56
54.55 175.83 102.56
Income tax liabilities
Provision for income tax - (103.18) {86.28)
54.55 72.65 16,28
As at As at As at
10 Deferred tax assets (net) March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April t,2019
Deferred tax asset / (liabilities) in relation to:
Provision for employee benefits 548 587 329
Lease 0.69 . -
Property Plant and Equipment 4.71 370 3.04
Restatement of Profit and Loss due to ertors (3.15) 11.47 28.56
Expected Credit Loss 0.02 0.00 0.57
7.75 21.04 35.46
(i) Movement in deferred tax assets for the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows:
ised in Profi R ised i
Description Opening Balance Recognised in Profit or ecogmse‘ |n‘other Closing balance
Loss comprehensive income
Deferred tax asset / (linbilitics) in relation to:
Provision for employee benefits 5.87 041 (0.80) 548
Lease - 0.69 - 0.69
Property Plant and Equipment 3.70 1.01 = 47
Other IND AS adjustment 1147 (14.62) - (3.15)
Expected Credit Loss 0,00 0,02 0.02
2104 (12.49) (0.80) 7.75
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(ii) Movement in deferred tax assets for the year ended March 31, 2020 is as follows:

Description

Opening Balance

Recognised in Profit or

Recognised in other

Closing balance

Deferred tax asset / (liabilities) in relation to:

Provision for employee benefits
Lease

Property Plant and Equipment
Other IND AS adjustment
Expected Credit Loss

Loss comprehensive income
3.29 1.44 1.14 5.87
3.04 0.66 . 3.70
28.56 (17.09) 1147
0.57 (0.37) 0.00
3546 (15.36) 1.14 21.04

(iii) Movement in deferred tax assets for the yeur ended 2019 is as follows:

Recognised in Profit or

Recognised in other

11 Other assets

12 Trade Receivables

Description Opening Balance Loss comprehensive income Closing balance
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Provision for employee benefits 2.52 0.60 0.17 329
Lease . = - -
Property Plant and Equipment 1.34 1.70 a 3.04
Other IND AS adjustment 10.74 17 82 - 28.56
Expected Credit Loss - 0.57 0.57
14.60 20.69 0.17 3546
As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1,2019
a)  Non-current
Capital Advances** 146,21 55.00 2455
Prepaid security deposit 40.40 50.72 44 11
186.61 105.72 68.66
b) Current
Advances to vendors 213 4.83 8.39
Balance with statutory authorities 315 0.98 146
Prepaid Expenses 384 0.57 0.50
Advances to employees 0.49 0.36 0.37
Other advances* 943 50.07 83,87
19.04 56.81 94.59
* [ncludes related party balance of NIL million (March 31, 2020: INR 6.27 million and April I, 2019: INR 32.07 million)
** Includes related party balance of INR 10 million (March 31, 2020:INR 10 million and April 1, 2019:NIL million)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1,2019
Trade receivables considered good-
unsecured 395.57 685,26 458,05
Trade receivables which have - B
significant increase in credit risk -
Trade receivables - credit impaired = - -
Less: ECL provision (0.08) (0.02) (1.97)
395.49 685.24 456.08
As at As at As at
13 Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Balances with banks
- i current accounts 99.87 321.16 87.06
Cash on hand 0.05 0.09 0.22
99.92 321.25 87.28
As at As at As at
14 Other bank balances March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1,2019
Balances with bank
- Bank deposits with maturity more than - - 70.06

three months but less than or equal to
twelve months

70.06
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L5 Equity Share capital

Authorised Equity Share Capital*
3,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each (March 31, 2020: 5,000,000
Equity Shares of INR 10 each & April 1, 2019: 5.000.000 Equity Sharcs ol

INR [0 each)

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up*
4,750,000 equity shares of INR 10 each (March 31. 2020 4,750.000
Equuly Shares of INR 10 cach & April [, 2019 4,750,000 Equity Shares of

INR 10 each)

As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

As at
April 1, 2019

* Tmpact of reduction in Face value of shares from INR 10 to INR 2 as a result of sub division of shares on September 10, 2021, not considered

Notes:

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the b

and at the end of the year:

As at
March 31, 2020

Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Movement during the year

Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year

50 00 50.00 5000
50.00 50.00 50.00
47 50 47 50 47 50
47.50 47.50 47.50
As at
April 1, 2019
Amount No. of shares Amount
4750 47,50,000 4750
47.50 47,50,000 47,50

(b) Terms and rights attached to equity shares and preference shares
The Company has oaly one class of equity shares having nominal value of INR10/- each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to

receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the Shareholders

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder

Liberatha Peter Kallat

Dinesh Nagpal
Mukesh Yaday

As at

March 31, 2020

#

(d) Details of shareholding of promoters

Liberatha Peter Kallat
Dinesh Nagpal
Mukesh Yadav

Liberatha Peter Kallat
Dinesh Nagpal
Mukesh Yadav

Liberatha Peter Kallat
Dinesh Nagpal
Mukesh Yadav

(e) The Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment

() The Company for the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date has not:
(i) Allotted any class of shares as fully paid pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash

As at
_April 1.2019
No of Shares % holding No of Shares

1,567,500 33.00% 1,567,500

1,567,500 33.00% 1,567,500

1,615,000 34.00% 1,615,000

As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares Amount % change
33.00% 1,567,500
33.00% 1,567,500
34.00% 1,615,000
As at March 31, 2020
No. of shares Amount % change
33 00% 1,567,500
33 00% 1,567,500
34 00% 1,615,000
As at April 1, 2019

No. of shares Amount % change
33.00% 1,567,500
33 00% 1,567,500
34.00% 1,615,000

(ii) Allotted fully paid up shares by way of bonus shares except for 4 74 million shares of INR 10 each in bonus issue during the financial year 2017-18

(iii) Bought back any class of shares

(g) Impact of reduction in Face value of shares from INR 10 to INR 2 as a result of sub division of shares on September 10, 2021, not considered on notes (a) to (£), wherever applicable
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16

Other equity

Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

(B)

Items that will not be

) Reserve & Surplus | reclassified to Profit and Total
Particulars A) Loss (A+B)
Remeasurement Gain &
Losses on defined benefit
obligation
As at April 1, 2019 294,67 (0.43) 294.24
-Profit for the year 316.83 - 316.83
-Other Comprehensive Income, net of Income tax (3.37) (3.37)
As at March 31, 2020 611.50 (3.80) 607.70
-Profit for the year (14.50) - (14.50)
-Other Comprehensive Income, net of Income tax 2.37 2.37
As at March 31, 2021 597.00 (1.43) 595.57
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17 Borrowings

a) Non Current
(Secured, at amortised cost)
Term loans from bank
Vehicle Loans
Less: Current maturities of non-current borrowings

Notes:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
1293 14.04 -
726 16.87 20 42
(7.34) (10.81) (10.78)
12.85 20.10 9.64

i) The tenm loan balance as on March 31, 2021, is payable in 91 (March 31, 2020: 103) instalments. The interest on such loan is payable at
MCLR - 1Y + 0.90%. The loan has been taken against the security of Company's investment property (Buildings)

ii) The interest on vehicle loans is payable in the range of 7 78% to 9.35% p.a

18 Other Financial Liabilities

a) Non- current
Lease liability

b) Current

Current maturities of non-current borrowings (Refer note 17)

Current maturities of lease liability
Expense payable

Security deposit- Received

Dues to employees

Bonus Payable

19 Provisions

a) Non Current
Provisions for employee benefits
Gratuity
Leave Encashment

b) Current
Provisions for employee benefits
Gratuity
Leave Encashment

20 Other liabilities

Current
Advance against investment property
Advance from customers
Statutory dues
CSR provision
Others

21 Trade payables

i, total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
i total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises

As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1,2019
63.33
63.33 - &
734 10.81 10.78
11.10 - -
3.28 0.82 027
256 2.53 2,53
20.69 311 491
- 46.80 84.91
44.97 64.07 103.40
As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
1135 13.24 6.49
7.01 9.00 4.28
18.36 22.24 10.77
1.86 0.44 0.20
156 0.65 0.31
3.42 1.09 0.51
As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
89.15 - > -
0.06 0.23 -
34.54 3694 2781
6.01 385 2.01
0.38 12.52 13.77
130.14 53.54 43.59
As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
211.81 Y
9711 56137 381.96
308.92 561.37 381.96
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a)

b)

Details of Dues to Micro and Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

The identification of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises is based on the Management's knowledge of their status, Disclosure is based on the
information available with the Company regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under ~The Micto, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006”

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

As at

April 1, 2019

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act

211.81

The amount of interest paid by the buyer m terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day duting each accounting year/petiod

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each

accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Trade Payables ageing:

As at September 30, 2021

Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year| 2-3 years| More than 3 years Total
MSME 112.97 - - 112.97
Others 93.10 - - 93.28
Disputed dues-MSME 0.18 - - 0.18
Disputed dues-Others 301 - - 3.01

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 2-3 years| More than 3 years Total
MSME 21163 - - 211.63
Others 9547 - - 95.65
Disputed dues-MSME 0.18 - - 0.18
Disputed dues-Others 1.46 - - 1.46

As at March 31, 2020

Particulars Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 2-3 years| ©More than 3 years Total
MSME - - - -
Others 561,33 - - 561.37
Disputed dues-MSME - - - -
Disputed dues-Others - - - -

As at April 1, 2019

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 2-3 years| More than 3 years Total
MSME - - - -
Others 381.80 - - 381.96

Disputed dues-MSME

Disputed dues-Others
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22 Revenue from operations

Sale of services

Notes:
a) Disaggregated revenue information
Type of services
Lounge fee
Other service fees
Total revenues from contracts with customers

1. The Company's revenue is generated primarily on account of transactions within India

The Company's revenue is recognised at a point in time

b) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in statement of profit and loss with the contract price:

Revenue as per Contracted price
Adjustments:
Rebate

23 Other income
Interest income on:
- fixed deposits with banks
- income tax refund
Profit on disposal of Fixed Assets
Write back of expected credit loss provision
Profit on disposal of Investment
Foreign Exchange Gain
Finance income on amortisation of security deposits
Miscellaneous income

24 Cost of Services
Lounge fee and other service related costs

25 Employee benefits expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

26 Finance costs

Interest paid
-on term loans

Other borrowing costs
-Processing cost
-lease expenses
-bank charges
-finance expenses on amortisation of security deposits

27 Depreciation and amortization expenses
Depreciation on Property plant and equipment
Depreciation on Investment Property
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation on right to use assets
Total

For the year ended For the year ended
March, 31 2021 March 31, 2020

1,056.33 3,670.43
1,056.33 3,670.43
1,027 28 3,627.22
2905 43.21
1,056.33 3,670.43
1,056.33 3,670.43
1,056.33 3,670.43
878 1.85
3.09 0.11
003 0.01
- 1.95

9.06 -
1.40 1.90
2.02 1.81
0.36 0.01
24.74 7.64
87541 2,995.63
875.41 2,995.63
119.18 168.45
513 747
2.08 336
126.39 179.28
2.32 3.16
036 0.31

1.20 -
0.13 0.19
3.44 3.39
7.45 7.05
12.62 1578

040

098 010

1.54 -
15.54 15.88
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28 Other expenses

29 Tax expenses

Rent 1.59 117
Repair & maintainance expenses 252 0383
Electricity and water expenses 0.56 031
Travelling and conveyance 3.96 11.37
Provision for expected credit loss 0.06 -
Assets written off 141 -
Communication expenses 0.82 100
Information Technology Expenses 20115 939
Insurance expenses 110 118
Rates and taxes 0.49 018
Legal and protessional fees 10.83 381
Postage and courier expenses 039 194
Printing & stationery 018 1.09
Corporate social responsibility expenses 601 3.85
Business promotion 5.81 847
Miscellaneous expenses 141 0.07
Total 58.29 44.66
Income tax recognized in Profit & Loss Account
Current tax - 103.18
Tax expense related to earlier years - 000
Deferred tax (credit)/charge 12.49 15.56
12.49 118.74
Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.80) 1.14
Total income tax expense recognized in other comprehensive
income (0.80) 1.14
Total income tax expense recognized 13.29 117.60

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by applicable tax rate for respective year

Profit before tax (2.01) 43557

Statutory tax rate applicable (%) 2517 25.17

Income tax expense calculated at applicable statutory tax rate 0.51) 109.63

Reconciliation Item

Tax saved on loss for the year 0.51 -

Change in tax rate (4.86)

IND AS adjustments 13.29 14.43

Other adjustments - (1.65)

Permanent difference - 0.05
Total income tax expense recognized in Profit and Loss 13.29 117.60

30 Earning per Share

Profit / (loss) after tax for the year (14.50) 316.83

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic 5,22,50,000 5,22,50,000

EPS

Weighted average number of shares considered for computation 5,22,50,000 5,22,50,000

of diluted EPS

Basic (028) 6.06

Diluted (0.28) 6.06

**

On September 10, 2021, the Company has sub-divided each fully paid up equity share of the nominal value of INR 10/-
(Rupees Ten Only) each into 5 (five) equity shares of INR 2/- (Rupee two Only) each fully paid up This is a subsequent
event and the weighted average number of shares have been adjusted for such division in line with requirements of IND AS

10

On September 25, 2021, the Company has issued the bonus shares in the ratio of 1.2:1 to the existing equity shareholders.
Impact of the same has been considered in the calculation of Basic and Diluted EPS/LPS. This is a subsequent event and
the weighted average number of shares have been adjusted for such bonus issue in line with requirements of IND AS 10
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31 Leases
The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the

underlying assets.

Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA on March 30, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices
thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under
a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.c.,
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less).

Operating lease commitments- Company as lessee
The Company has lease contracts for office premises. Lease of premises have lease term of 9 years.

a. Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities:

Recognition of leases 75.20
Accretion of interest 1.20
Payments (1.97)
As at March 31, 2021 74.43

The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10.00%.

b. The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

For the year ended
March, 31 2021

Depreciation expense of right of use assets 1.54
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1.20
2.74

Total amount recognised in profit or loss
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32 Transition to Ind AS
First-time adoption of Ind AS

These Ind AS financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2021, have been prepared by the Company in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and
including the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP)

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on March 31, 2021, together with the
comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial
statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at April 1, 2019, being the Company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the
principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at April 1, 2019 and the financial
statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company and an explanation on how the transition from the previous GAAP to [nd AS has affected its
financial statements, including the Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2019 and the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from the previous GAAP to Ind AS:

a. Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 gives an option to elect to continue with the carrying value for all items of its property, plant and equipment as recognized in the financial statements as
on the date of transition to Ind AS, either measured as per the previous GAAP value or at fair value of assets as at the date of transition and use it as deemed cost on
the date of transition. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by [nd AS 38 Intangible Assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all items of its property, plant and equipment, recognized as of April 1, 2019 and use it as deemed
cost as on that date

b. Investment in subsidiaries and associates

Ind AS 27 requires an entity to account for its investments in subsidiaries and associates either at cost or in accordance with Ind AS 109. Ind AS 101 provides an
option to measure such investments as at the date of transition to Ind AS either at cost determined in accordance with Ind AS 27 or deemed cost, where deemed cost
shall be its fair value as at date of transition to Ind AS or previous GAAP carrying amount as at that date. The Company has elected to account for such investment

¢. De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of
transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the
entity’s choosing, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognized as a result of past transactions
was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions. The Company has applied the de-recognition requirements of financial assets and financial
liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring on or after April 1, 2019 (the transition date)

d. Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous
GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2019 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company made estimates
for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:

* Reclassification of actuarial gain/loss to Other Comprehensive Income (OCI); and

* Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model

e. Ind As 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of fact and circumstances existing as on the date of transition. Further, the
standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective
application is impracticable
Accordingly, Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstamces that exist on the date of transition, Measurement of
financials assets accounted at amortised cost has been done restrospectively except where the same is impracticable

f. Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial instruments were initially recognized in order to
compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date of
transition to [nd AS, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.
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Reconciliation of equity as previously reported under IGAAP to Ind AS as at April 1, 2019

As at As at As at
April 1, 2019 April 1,2019 April 1, 2019
As per IGAAP Ind AS Adjustment As per Ind AS
Assets
Non - current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3827 (276) 35.51
Intangible assets 0.05 - 0.05
Financial assets
Others 62 50 (44.40) 18.10
Deferred tax assets (net) 224 33.22 35.46
Other non - current assets 25.05 43.65 68.66
128.11 29.71 157.83
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 459.98 (390) 456.08
Cash and cash equivalents 8737 (0.08) 8728
Other bank balances 70.06 - 70.06
Loans 9.49 - 949
Other financial assets - -
Current tax assets 1628 16.28
Other current assets 94.59 - 94.59
737.76 (3.98) 733.78
Total Assets 865.88 25.73 891.61
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 47.50 - 47.50
Other equity 369.04 (74.80) 294.24
416.54 (74.80) 341.74
Liabilities
Non - current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 9.64 9.64
Provisions 10.77 - 1077
20.41 - 20.41
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 38196 - 38196
Other financial liabilities 18.65 8475 103.40
Provisions 0.51 - 0.51
Other current liabilities 27.81 1578 43.59
428.93 100.53 529.46
Total Equity & Liabilities 865.88 25.73 891.61
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Reconciliation of equity as previously reported under IGAAP to IND AS as at March 31, 2020

As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020
As per IGAAP Ind AS Adjustment As per Ind AS
Assets
Non - current assets
Property, plant and equipment 65.96 (13.07) 52.89
Intangible assets 1.18 - 118
Capital work - in - progress 6.40 6.40
Financial assets -

Others 68.40 (42.58) 25.82
Non-current tax assets ] - -
Deferred tax assets (net) 0.46 20.58 21.04
Other non - current assets 94.27 11.45 105.72

236.67 (23.59) 213.10
Current assets
Financial assets

Trade receivables 685.03 0.21 685 24

Cash and cash equivalents 32125 321.25

Loans 28.56 28.56
Current tax assets 72.65 - 72.65
Other current assets 15.16 41.65 56 81

1.122.65 41.86 1,164.51
Total Assets 1,359.31 18.28 1,377.60
Equity And Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 4750 - 47.50
Other equity 655.91 (48.21) 607.70

703.41 (48.21) 655,20

Liabilities
Non - current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 20.10 20.10

Provisions 22.24 - 2224
42.34 - 42,34

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 561.37 - 561.37

Other financial liabilities 13.88 50.19 64.07
Other current liabilities 37.23 16.31 53.54
Provisions 1.09 - 109

613.57 66.50 680.06
Total Equity & Liabilities 1,359.32 18.29 1,377.60
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income

Expenses

Cost of Services

Employee benefits expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before exceptional items and tax
Profit before tax
Tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax

Income tax pertaining to earlier years
Profit after tax
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit obligation

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss

Total other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Profit reconciliation for the year ended March 31, 2020

Profit as per [GAAP

Interest income on unwinding of discount
Others

Writeback of Expected Credit Loss

CSR expense

Reclass of Gratuity and LE from Reserves
Net impact of restatement of revenue, cost and Bonus
Impact on amortisation of prepaid deposit
Impact on restatement of depreciation
Movement in deferred tax

Movement of actuarial gains to OCI
Profit as per Ind AS for the year

For the year ended  For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2020
As per IGAAP

March 31, 2020
Ind AS Adjustment

March 31, 2020
As per Ind AS

3,659.14 1129 3,670.43
2.09 555 764
3,661.23 16.84 3,678.07
2,985 36 10.27 2,995 63
21037 (31.09) 179.28
3.66 339 705
1556 032 (588
41.03 363 44.66
3,255.98 (13.47) 3,242.50
405 25 30.32 43556
405 25 3032 43556
103 18 - 103.18
1.77 1379 1556
0.00 . 0.00
104.95 13.79 118.74
300.30 16.53 316.82
@51 “51)
. 114 1.14
(3.38) (3.37)
300.30 13.15 31345

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

300.30
181
1.96
195

(3 84)
(11.50)
3913
(3 39)
(0.32)
(13.79)
451
316.82

—_—
_—

Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2019 and March 31, 2020 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020:

Financial Assets & Liabilities

Under Indian GAAP, there was no such concept of financial assets or liabilities. Under Ind AS, financial assets and financial liabilities has been classified as per Ind
AS 109 read with Ind AS 32. Figures of the Previous Year have been regrouped as per [nd AS, wherever necessary

Other comprehensive income

Under the previous GAAP, the Company did not present total comprehensive income and other comprehensive income. Hence, it has reconciled the previous GAAP
profit to profit as per Ind AS. Further, the previous GAAP profit is reconciled to other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income as per [nd AS

Property, plant and equipment & Intangible Assets

Under Ind AS, the Company has elected to use carrying value as deemed cost at the date of transition to Ind AS and subsequently opted for cost model with respect

to all classes of property, plant and equipments
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33 Financial Risk Management

Financial Risk Factors

The Company's operational activities are expose it to various financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company realizes that these risks are mherent
and tegral aspect of business. The Company continues to focus on a system based approach to business risk management. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade
and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations

The Company ensures that its financial risk actwvities which are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's

activibies

Market risk:
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in the prices of a financial instrument . The value of

a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices, equity prices and other market changes that effect
market risk sensitive instruments

Interest Rate Risk :
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to

the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long and short term borrowings obligations in the nature of tern loan, cash credit facilities and
working capital loans

Particulars Fixed Rate Borrowing Variable Rate Borrowing Total Borrowing

As at March 31, 2021 7.25 12.94 20.19
As at March 31, 2020 16.87 14.04 3091
Asat April [, 2019 2042 - 20.42

[nterest rate sensitivity analysis shows that an decrease / increase of fifty basis points in the floating interest rates would tesult in decrease / increase in the Company’s profit /
(loss) before tax by approximately INR 0.06 million (March 31, 2020: INR 0.06 million)

Sensitivity on variable rate Impact on Statement of Profit & Loss

borrowings March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Interest rate increase by 0.50% (0 06) (0.07) -
Interest rate decrease by 0.50% 0.06 0.07 -

i. Foreign Currency Risk :

The Indian Rupee is the Company’s most significant currency. As a consequence, the Company’s results are presented in Indian Rupee and exposures are managed against Indian
Rupee accordingly Foreign currency risk is the risk impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign currency, which fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the foreign currency transactions on account of global operations and
transactions in foreign currency with its customers which is presently not significant in comparison to the total operations of the company

Credit risk:

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Company’s policy Investments of surplus funds, when available, are made only
with approved authorities. Credit limits of all authorities are reviewed by the management on regular basis. The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components
of the balance sheet at March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 and April 1, 2019 is the carrying amounts

(ii) Expected Credit loss for loans, security deposits and investments

Estimated Gross - Carrying amount net
i E ted babil
Particulars Asset Group Internal.Credn Carrying amount at xpected probability Expected Credit loss of impairment
Rating of loss L
default provision

As at March 31, 2021
Loss allowance measured at 12 month expected credit loss
- Financial assets for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since - Considered good
initial recognition Loans, Investments 75.63 0.00% - 75.63

Loss allowance measured at life - time expected credit loss

- Financial assets for which credit risk Loans

has increased significantly and credit - Considered doubtful - 0.00%

impaired .
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As at March 31, 2020

Loss allowance measured at 12 month expected credit loss
- Financial assets for which credit risk Loans

has not increased significantly since - Considered good
initial recognition Security Deposits

Loss allowance measured at life - time expected credit loss
- Financial assets for which credit isk Loans
has increased significantly and credit

impaired - Considered doubtful

As at April 1, 2019

Loss allowance measured at 12 month expected credit loss
- Financial assets for which credit risk Loans

has not increased sigunificantly since - Considered good
initial recognition Security Deposits

Loss allowance measured at life - time expected credit loss
- Financial assets for which credit risk Loans
has increased significantly and credit

impaired - Considered doubtful

(iii) Expected credit loss of trade receivables

tn

1A%

54 37

27.59

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

54 37

27.59

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at April 1, 2019
Particulars Upto 6 months  More than 6 months Upto 6 months More than 6 months Upto 6 months More than 6 months
Gross carrying amount (A) 39507 0.50 68510 0.16 446,71 1134
Expected Credit Losses (B) - (0.08) - (0.02) . (197)
Net Carrying Amount (A-B) 395.07 0.42 685.10 0.14 446.71 9.37

Liquidity risk:

The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity

profiles of financial assets and liabilities for the Company

Table hereunder provides the current ratios of the Company as at the year end

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contracted undiscounted payments (excluding transaction cost on borrowings)

Particulars

As at March 31, 202(
Borrowings

Other Financial Liabilities
Trade payables

Leases

Total

As at March 31, 2020
Borrowings

Other Financial Liabilities
Trade payables

Leases

Total

As at April 1, 2019
Borrowings

Other Financial Liabilities
Trade payables

Leases

Total

Less than one year  Above 1 year but less Above S years Total
than 5 years

7.34 761 524 20.19
26.52 - - 26 52
30892 - - 308 92
11.10 3899 24.34 74.43
353.88 46.60 29,58 430.06
10.81] 13.06 7.04 3091
53.26 - - 5326
561 37 - 56137
625.44 13.06 7.04 645.54
10 78 964 - 2042
92.62 - . 9262
381.96 . - 38196
485.36 9.64 - 495,00
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34 Financial Instruments - Disclosure

A

The table below summarises the undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of reporting period.

Floating Rate

Fund based facility (Working capital loan and cash credit facility)

Total

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

100

50

As at April 1, 2019

50

100

50

50

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting

standard.

Financial Instruments by category
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019

Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost FVTPL
Financial Assets
At Amortised Cost
[nvestments 0.05 0.05 0.05
Trade receivables 395.49 685.24 456.08
Cash and cash equivalents 99.92 - 321.25 - 8728
Other Bank Balances - 70.06 .
Loans:
- Non - Current 24.72 - 25.82 - 18 10 -
- Current 28.86 - 28.56 - 949 -
Others Financial Asset
- Non - Current z - = = , .
- Current 22,05 - - - 5
Total financial assets 571.09 - 1,060.92 641.06 -
Financial liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Bormrowings
- Non - Current 12.85 - 20.10 9.64
- Current - - - -
Trade payables 308.92 561.37 - 381 96 -
Other financial liabilities
- Current 33.87 - 64.07 - 103.40 -
Lease liabilities 74.43 - - - -
Total financial liabilities 430.07 - 645.54 - 495.00 -
Accounting classification and fair values
Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Financial Assets
- At Amortised Cost
Investments 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 005
Trade receivables 395.49 685.24 456.08 39549 685.24 456.08
Cash and cash equivalents 99 92 321.25 87.28 99.92 32125 87.28
Other Bank Balances - 70.06 - 70.06
Loans:
- Non - Current 24.72 25.82 18 10 24.72 2582 18 10
- Current 28 86 28.56 949 28 .86 28.56 9.49
Others Financial Asset
- Non - Current - - - -
- Current 2205 - - 22.05 - -
Total financial assets 571.09 1,060.92 641.06 571.09 1,060.92 641.06
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Financial liabilities

- At Amortised Cost
Borrowings

- Non - Current

- Current

Trade payables 308.92

Other financial liabilities

- Current 33.87
7443
Total financial liabilities 430.07

Lease liabilities

C Fair Value Hierarchy

2010
56137
64 07

645.54

9.64 12.85 20.10
381.96 308.92 56137
103 40 3387 64 07

- 74 43 .
495.00 430.07 645,54

9.64

38196

103 40
0
495.00

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting

standard

March 31, 2021

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
[nvestments - E 005 0.05
Trade receivables * - - 39549 39549
Cash and cash equivalents - - 9992 99.92
Other Bank Balances -
Loans: -
- Non - Current - - 24.72 2472
- Current - - 28.86 28.86
Others Financial Asset -
- Non - Current -
- Current * - - 22.05 22.05
Total Financial Assets - - 571.09 571.09
Financial liabilities
Borrowings -
- Non - Current - - 12.85 12.85
- Current * - - - -
Trade payables * - - 308.92 308.92
Other financial liabilitics -
- Current * - - 3387 33.87
Lease liabilities - - 74 43 7443
Total Financial liabilities - - 430.07 430.07

Particul March 31, 2020

articalary Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets
At Amortised Cost
Investments 0.05 0.05
Trade receivables * 68524 685.24
Cash and cash equivalents 32125 32125
Other Bank Balances -
Loans: -
- Non - Cwrent 2582 2582
- Current 28.56 28.56
Total Financial Assets - - 1,060.92 1,060.92
Financial liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings .
- Non - Current 20 10 20 10
- Current * - -
Tiade payables * 56137 56137
Other financial liabilities -
- Cuirent * 64.07 64.07
Total Financial liabilities - - 645.54 645.54
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April 1, 2019

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
At Amortised Cost
Investments - - 00s 0.05
Trade receivables * - - 456.08 456,08
Cash and cash equivalents - - 87.28 87.28
Other Bank Balances - - 70.06 70.06
Loans: -
- Non - Current - - 18.10 18.10
- Current - - 949 9.49
Others Financial Asset
- Non - Current
- Current * - - -
Total Financial Assets - - 641.06 641.06
Financial liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings -
- Non - Current - 9.64 9.64
- Current * - . -
Trade payables * - - 381.96 381.96
Other financial liabilities -
- Current * - - 103 40 103 40
Total Financial liabilities - - 495.00 495.00

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale
* The carrying amounts are considered to approximate their fair values largely due to short term maturities of these instruments

Note:
1 There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 and level 3in any of the periods reporte above
2 The level | financial instruments are measured using quotes in active market

35 Capital Management

The Company’s objectives while managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem and optimise returns for its shareholders. For the purpose of the Company’s
capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders and net debt includes interest bearing loans and borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s policy is to maintaina stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market
confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. The Company’s funding
requirements are met through internal accruals, short-term and long-term borrowings. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 and April 1, 2019

The net gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31,2020  As at April 1, 2019

Particulars
Debt (i) 20.19 3091 20.42
Cash & bank balances 99.92 32125 157.34
Net Debt (79.73) (290.34) (136.92)
Total Equity 643.07 65520 341.74
Net gearing ratio (0 12) (0.44) (0.40)

(i) Debt is defined as long-tenn and short-term borrowings
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36

37

38

—

IL.

1L

Iv.

As at As at As at

Contingent Liabilties, capital and other commitments : March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on - - -
capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

Contingent Liabilities

For the year ended For the year ended

Auditor’s remuneration (exclusive of Tax): March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Statutory Audit fee 0.80 0.25
Tax audit - 0.05
Other services . s
Total 0.80 0.30

Disclosures as required by Indian Accounting Standard 19 on Employee Benefits :

. Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions towards a provident fund under a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. The provident fund is
administered by Employee Provident Fund Organisation Under this scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to fund the benefits

Both the employees and the Company make pre-determined contributions to the provident fund. Amount recognized as expense amounts to INR 48.38 million for the year
ended March 31, 2021 (for the year ended March 31, 2020: INR 70.44 million) under contributions to provident and other funds

Gratuity

The Company have an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The plan provides for a lump.
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each
completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service The gratuity benefits are unfunded

Gratuity liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation

The Company regularly assesses these assumptions with the projected long-term plans and prevalent industry standards
Leave plan and compensated absences

The Company has a leave encashment scheme with defined benefits for its employees The Company makes provision for such liability in the books of accounts on the basis
of year end actuarial valuation. No fund has been created for this scheme.

For summarizing the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for
the respective plans, the details are as under

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

Gratuity
DESerifiioh As at As at As at

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Opening defined benefit obligation 13.68 6.69 4.63
Interest cost 092 051 0.36
Total service cost 178 1.97 110
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation (317 451 0.60
Closing defined benefit obligation 1321 1368 6.69
Leave Encashment
Description As at As at As at

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Opening defined benefit obligation 9.65 4.59 4.00
[nterest cost 0.66 035 0.31
Total service cost 2.02 1.97 105
Benefits paid (0.25) (0.06) (0.01)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation (351 2.80 (076)

8.57 9.65 4.59

Closing defined benefit obligation
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b.

Changes in fair value of plan assets:

Gratuity
Description

Opening fair vaiue of plan assets
Expected return

Contributions

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gains)/losses

Closing fair value of plan assets
Leave Encashment

Description

Opening fair value of plan assets
Expected retum

Contributions

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gains)/losses

Closing fair value of plan assets

Net employee benefit expense recognized in statement of profit and loss

Gratuity
Description

Total service cost

Interest cost

Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss
Total Expense

Net employee benefit expense recognized in Other Comprehensive income

Gratuity
Description

Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss
Net employee benefit expense recognized in statement of profit and loss

Leave Encashment
Description

Total service cost

Interest cost

Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss
Total Expense

Net employee benefit expense recognized in Other Comprehensive income

Leave Encashment
Description

Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss

Amount recognised in the Balance sheet

Gratuity
Description

Present value of obligation as at the end of the pertod
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period
Net Asset/ (liability) recognized in Balance sheet

Leave Encashment

Description

Present value of obligation as at the end of the period
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period
Net Asset/ (liability) recognized in Balance sheet

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
1.77
093

2,70

For the year ended
March 31,2021
(317)

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
2.02
0.66
351)
(0.83)

For the year ended

March 31, 2021
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1321 13 68
1321 13.68
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
857 9.65
8,57 965

e
¢

As at
April 1, 2019

As at
April 1, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2020
195
0.51

2.46

For the year ended
March 31, 2020
4.51

For the year ended
March 31, 2020
1.97
0.35
2.80
5.12

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2020

As at
April 1, 2019

As at
April 1,2019
459
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e.  The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Gratuity
Description
As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019

Discount rate 6.69% pa 6.80% pa 765% pa
Expected salary increase (%) 2.00% p.a 2.00% pa. 500%pa
Average remaining working lives of employees 22 43 years 23 19 years 23 29 years
Average past service (years) 2.65 years 2.25 years 2.18 years
Demographic Assumptions
Retirement Age (year) 58 years 58 years 58 years
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of TALM 100% of IALM 100% of IALM (2006 -

(2012 - 14) (2012 - 14) 08)
Leave Encashment
Description As at As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019

Discount rate 6.69% p.a 6.80% p.a 765%pa
Expected salary increase (%) 2.00% p.a 200%pa 5.00% pa
Average remaining working lives of employees 22.43 years 23 19 years 23 29 years
Average past service (years) 2.65 years 2.25 years 2.18 years
Demographic Assumptions
Retirement Age (year) 58 years 58 years 58 years
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM 100% of IALM 100% of TALM (2006 -

(2012 - 14) (2012 - 14) 08)

The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand

in the employment market The above information is certified by Actuary

Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation:

Gratuity
Description As at As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 13.21 13.68 6.69
Impact due to increase of 0.50% (0.25) (0.46) (0.26)
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 0.26 049 0.28
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 1321 13.68 6.69
Impact due to increase of 0.50% 0.27 0.50 028
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 0.27) (0.48) 0.27)
Leave Encashment
Description As at As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 857 9.65 4.59
Impact due to increase of 0.50% 0.20) (0.36) 0.19)
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 020 0.37 0.21
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 8.57 9.65 4.59
Impact due to increase of 0.50% 021 039 0.21
Impact due to decrease of 0 50% 0.2hH 037 (0.20)
Maturity profile of Defined benefit obligations
Gratuity
Description As at As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Oto 1 Year 1 86 044 020
1to2 Year 1.43 033 0.16
2to3 Year 128 033 016
3104 Year 3.57 033 015
4t05 Year 0.66 490 015
5to 6 Year 057 019 016

382 715 572

6 Year onwards
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Leave Encashment

Description As at As at As at
p March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
0to | Year 156 065 031
1to 2 Year 094 0.24 0.11
2103 Year 0.99 0.23 0.11
3t04 Year 171 032 0.11
4105 Year 0.45 2.88 011
5to 6 Year 0.39 014 1.26
6 Year onwards 2.52 519 258
Expected contribution for the next Annual reporting period.
Gratuity
Descrintion As at As at As at
P March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1,2019
Service Cost 184 2.19 141
Net Interest Cost 088 093 0.52
Expected Expense for the next annual reporting period 272 312 1.93
Leave Encashment
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019
Service Cost 1.74 1.88 1.09
Net Interest Cost 0.57 0.66 0.35
Expected Expense for the next annual reporting period 231 2.54 1.44
39. Related Party Transactions in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) -24
1 Subsidiary company Dreamfolks Hospitality Private Limited
2 Individual having direct or indirect significant influence
over the reporting entity Mukesh Yadav
Dinesh Nagpal
Liberatha Peter Kallat (Managing Director)
3 Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Liberatha Peter Kallat (Managing Director)
Mukesh Yadav
Dinesh Nagpal
4 Enterprises over which individual and their relatives exercise significant influence with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Dreamfolks Estate Private Limited
Urban Land Management Private Limited
Dreamfolks Technologies Private Limited (Since 16.09.2019)
Malibu Estate Dispensary Private Limited
PD Enterprises
Ankur Associates
a. Transactions with related parties
N For the year ended For the year ended
Particul
artieutars Marech 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(A) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Remuneration
Mukesh Yadav 23.46 3844
Dinesh Nagpal 23.46 3844
Liberatha Peter Kallat 23.46 3844
Reimbursements
Mukesh Yadav 185 1.44
Dinesh Nagpal 1.92 1.44
Liberatha Peter Kallat 192 144
Advance Taken
Mukesh Yadav 750 10.00
Dinesh Nagpal 10.00
Liberatha Peter Kallat 5000
Advance recovered
Mukesh Yadav (17.50) (3.50)
Dinesh Nagpal (10.00) (18.12)
Liberatha Peter Kallat (10.00) (57.67)
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. For the year ended For the year ended
P
articiling March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020

(B) Enterprises over which individual and their relatives exercise significant influence
Capital advances
Urban Land Management Private Limited 10.00
Rent Paid
Ankur Associates 0.62 0.93
Software Support Services (Expense)
Dreamfolks Technologies Private Limited 18.00 750
Reimbursement for expenses paid
Dreamfolks Technologies Private Limited 042 000
Advance given
Urban Land Management Private Limited - 2500
Malibu Estate Dispensary Private Limited - 1.00
Advances recovered
Urban Land Management Private Limited (25 00)
PD Enterprises - (6.05)
Dream Folks Estate Private Limited 6.27) (1.05)
Malibu Estate Dispensary Private Limited - (19.70)

b.  Balances of related parties as at:

(A) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Advances given
Dinesh Nagpal - 10.00 18 12
Liberatha Peter Kaltat - 10.00 17.67
Mukesh Yadav . 10.00 3.50
Salary recoverable/(payable)
Dinesh Nagpal (6.82) 0.50 0.15)
Liberatha Peter Kallat (6.37) 045 0.54)
Mukesh Yadav (2.28) 0.50 (0.55)
Reimbursement payables
Liberatha Peter Kallat 0.14)
Mukesh Yadav (0.06)

(B) Enterprises over which individual and their relatives exercise significant influence
Security deposit given
Urban land management private limited 62.50 6250 62,50
Capital Advance
Urban land management private limited 10.00 10.00 -
Advances given
PD Enterprises - 6.05
Dream Folks Estate Private Limited 6.27 7.32
Malibu Estate Dispensary Private Limited 1870
Expenses payable
Ankur Associates (0.07) - -
Dreamfolks Technologies Private Limited (0.64) (162)
Reimbursement of expenses recoverable
Dreamfolks Estate Private Limited - - 025
Dreamfolks Technologies Private Limited - 0.00

40 Segment information

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's other components and for which discrete financial information is available All operating segments' operating
results are reviewed regularly by Board of Directors to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance. The Company’s business
activity falls within a single segment, which is providing airport services to help clients in the card issuance business, BFSI, hospitality and travel industry to achieve their

business goals, in terms of Ind AS 108 on Segment Reporting

[n view of the management, there is only one reportable segment as envisaged by Indian Accounting Standard 108, 'Operating Segments' as prescribed under Se;

133 0f

the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder. Accordingly, no disclosure for segment reporting has been made in the financial statements, ()
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41 Sub-division of equity shares
Subsequent to the period ended March 31, 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 2, 2021 have approved sub-division of existing
authorised share capital of the Company from Rs. 50.00 million consisting of 5,000,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each to 25,000,000 equity shares of face value
of INR 2 cach and sub-division of existing issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Company from INR 47.50 million consisting of 4,750,000 equity shares
of face value of INR 10 each to 23,750,000 equity shares of face value of INR 2 each. This has been approved by the shareholders in their extra-ordinary general meeting held

on September 10, 2021.

42 Tssue of bonus shares
Subsequent to the period ended March 31, 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 24, 2021 have approved issuance of bonus shares in
the ratio of 1:1 2 to existing equity shareholders by capitalizing a sum of INR 57,00 million out of the reserves of the Company, pursuant to which issued, subscribed and paid-
up equity share capital of the Company stands increased from INR 47.50 million consisting of 23,750,000 equity shares of face value of INR 2 each to INR 104 50 million
consisting of 52,250,000 equity shares of face value of INR 2 each. This has been approved by the sharcholders in their extra-ordinary general meeting held on September 25,
2021

43 In accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the Board of Directors of the Company had constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee. During the year, the Committee has approved the budget outlay of Rs. 6.01 million (March 31, 2020: Rs.3.85 million) for Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR). The Company has made payments in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder

44. The outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The Company's operations
were impacted due to restriction on travel and hotel accommodation during the nationwide lockdown As a result of lockdown, the volumes for the year ended March 31,
2021 have been impacted. Further, the Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, receivables, and other assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic condition
because of the pandemic, the Company, as at the date of the approval of this standalone financial information has used internal and external sources on the expected future
performance of the Company. Based on current indicators of future conditions, the Company expects the carrying amount of these will be recovered and sufficient liquidity is
available to fund the business operations, Given the uncertainty because of COVID-19, the final impact on the Company's assets in future may differ from the estimated as at
the date of approval of the standalone financial information

45 Subsequent to March 31, 2021, Employee Stock Option Plan 2021 namely “ESOP 20217 was adopted by the Board of Directors vide its resolution dated September 28, 2021
and by the shareholders vide its resolution dated September 29, 2021. Under the ESOP 2021, the Company granted stock options to the eligible employees of Company which
will vest over a period of 3 years from date of Grant

46. Change in status and name of the Company
Subsequent to the period ending 31st March 2021, the Company has applied for a change of status of the Company from private to public company The certificate of
incorporation is yet to be received

47 In the opinion of the management there is no reduction in value of any assets, unless otherwise stated, in terms of requirement of Indian Accounting Standard — 36
Impairment of Assets”,

48 There are no present obligations requiring provisions in accordance with the guiding principles as enunciated in Indian Accounting Standard - 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities & Contingent Assets’

49 Previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with current year’s figures.
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 13" Annual General Meeting of the members of Dreamfolks
Services Private Limited will be held on Saturday, 20" November 2021 at 11:30 A.M. at 22, DDA
Flats, Panchsheel Park, Shivalik Road, New Delhi-110017, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statements (including the consolidated Financial
Statements) of the company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and the Reports of
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon;

2. “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(1) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time or any other
law for the time being in force (including any statutory modification or amendment thereto
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), M/s S S Kothari Mehta & Company,
Chartered Accountants (FRN 000756N) be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors
of the Company for a period of five (5) years and shall hold the office from the conclusion
of this meeting till the conclusion of 18™ Annual General Meeting on such remuneration as
maybe mutually agreed between Auditors and Board of Directors of the company.”

Place: New Delhi By Order of the Board of Directors
For Dreamfolks Services Private limited

Date: 19.11.2021

forlZ

Liberatha Peter Kallat
Managing Director

DIN: 06849062

Address: Flat no. B1501, Ireo Grand
Arch, Village Ghata, Sector 58,
Gurgaon, Haryana-1220021

Regd. Office : 22, DDA Flats, Shivalik Road, Panchsheel Park, New Delhi - 110017



NOTES:

ik

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member of the company. the instrument
appointing a proxy, should however be deposited at the registered office of the company, not less
than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

Pursuant to the provision of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19 of
Companies (Management and Administration) Rule, 2014 a person can act as proxy on behalf of
members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in aggregate not more than 10 (ten) percent of the
total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10 (ten)
percent of the total share capital the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person
as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder.

In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Registrar of Companies, Delhi, vide its Order
no. ROC/Delhi/AGM Ext./2020/11538 dated September 08, 2020 has extended the time to to hold
the Annual General Meeting (“AGM?”) by a period of three months from the due date by which the
AGM ought to have been held. Accordingly, the AGM of the Company is being held incompliance
of the said ROC extension order.

Members/Proxies (MGT 11) should bring duly filled Attendance Slips sent herewith to attend the
meeting.

The register of Director’s Shareholding, maintained under section 170 and Register of Contracts,
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the
members at the meeting,

Members desiring any information on the accounts are requested to write to the Company at least
seven days before the annual general meeting.

Route Map is attached for reference.
As per Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Secretarial Standards for general

meeting issued by the Institute of Companies Secretaries of India “No gifts, gift coupons or cash in
lieu of gifts shall be distributed to members at or in connection with the meeting”.
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0124-4037306 | www.dreamfolks.in
BOARDS’ REPORT
To
The Members,

The directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirteenth Annual Report and the Audited Financial
Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021.

1. Financial Results

The financial performance of your Company for the Year ended Merch 31, 2021 is summarised below:
) _(Amount in INR mtlltons)

e ;ended March_SI 2(}21 - ended March 31 2020
Income
Eevenue from operations 1,056.33 3,670.43
Other income 24.74 7.64
Total income _ LO8Lo7| 367807
Expenses
Cost of Services 875.41 2,995.62
Employee benefits expenses 126.39 179.28
Finance costs 7.45 7.05
Depreciation and amortization expenses 15.54 15.88
Other expenses 58.29 44.66
Total expenses 1,083.08 | 324250 |
Profit / (loss) before tax (2.01) 435.57
Tax Expense
Current tax - 103.18
Tax expense related to earlier years - 0.00
Deferred tax (credlt)/charge 12.49 15.56
| Profit / Goss) after tax for the period lyear - "{14-.50)-' -31.&.183
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to Profit & Loss
b:r{lzfr;[egglllirgeargz?]t gain / (loss) on defined 317 4.51)
Dottt iyl Joe vl ot o
‘Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the (12.13) 31346

Regd. Office : 22, DDA Flats, Shivalik Road, Panchsheel Park, New Delhi -

110017




Earnings / (Loss) per equity share (in INR)
Basic (0.28) 6.06
Diluted (0.28) 6.06

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act. The Company’s first financial
statement is prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and accordingly First-time
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards Ind AS 101 has been applied. In preparing its Ind AS balance
sheet as at April 1, 2019 and in presenting the comparative information for the year ended March 31, 2020,
the Company has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with
previous GAAP.

2. Appropriation and Reserves
Dividend

With a view to reinvest the profits of the business, the board of directors of your Company (the “Board™)
does not recommend any dividend on equity shares of the Company for year ended March 31, 2021.

Reserves
Your directors have not proposed to transfer any amount to reserves for the financial year 2020-21.
Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates of the Company

As on the date of this report the Company has one subsidiary namely Dreamfolks Hospitality Private
Limited.

A statement containing salient features, performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries
for the year ended March 31, 2021, is attached with the financial statement of the Company in the
prescribed Form AOC-1 as Annexure - 1 and forms part of this report. The entire set of subsidiaries’
financials are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company and the same will be
available on the Company’s website, in accordance with the requirements of the Act.

Further, there has been no material change in the nature of the business of the subsidiary Companies.
During the year under review, your Company did not have any associate or joint venture company.
During the year, no company has become and ceased to be the Subsidiary/ Joint Venture and Associate
Company.

Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Company prepared as per the applicable accounting standard
consolidating the Company’s accounts with its subsidiaries will form part of the annual report.



5. Revision of Financial Statement

There was no revision of the financial statements for the year under review.

Changes in the capital structure

During the year under review, there was no change in the authorised, subscribed and paid-up share capital
of the Company.

Subsequent to the close of the financial year till the date of this report, following changes took place in
the authorised, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company

a.

Sub-division of equity shares

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 2, 2021 have approved
sub-division of existing authorised share capital of the Company from Rs. 50.00 million consisting
of 5,000,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each to 25,000,000 equity shares of face value of
INR 2 each and sub-division of existing issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the
Company from Rs. 47.50 million consisting of 4,750,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each
to 23,750,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 2 each. This has been approved by the shareholders
in their extra-ordinary general meeting held on September 10, 2021.

Increase in the Authorised share capital of the Company

The members at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on September , 2021,
approved increase in the authorised share capital of the Company from Rs. 5,00,00,000 divided into
2,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each to Rs. 15,00,00,000divided into 7,50,00,000 equty shares of
Rs.2each on 14"%September 2021.

Issue of bonus shares

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 24, 2021, have approved
issuance of bonus shares in the ratio of 1:1.2 to existing equity shareholders by capitalizing a sum of
Rs. 57.00 million out of the reserves of the Company, pursuant to which issued, subscribed and paid-
up equity share capital of the Company stands increased from Rs. 47.50 million consisting of
23,750,000 equity shares of face value of INR 2 each to Rs. 104.50 million consisting of 52,250,000
equity shares of face value of INR 2 each. This has been approved by the shareholders in their extra-
ordinary general meeting held on September 25, 2021.

Public Deposits

During the financial year under review, your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposit falling
within the purview of the provisions of Sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read
with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the requirement for furnishing
of details of deposits which are not in compliance with Chapter V of the Act is not applicable.



10.

11.

12

13,

14.

15

Disclosures under Section 134(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which could affect
the Company’s financial position have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company
and date of this report.

Disclosure of internal financial controls
The Company has established internal control systems which is adequate commensurate with its size and
nature of operations so as to ensure smoothness of operations and compliance with applicable legislation.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties

During the financial year under review, the company has entered into transactions with related parties.
The transactions as entered into by the company with the related parties were in the ordinary course of
business and on arm’s length basis and none of the transaction entered with the related parties was
considered as material and accordingly the disclosure as required under section 134(3) (h) of the

Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

The details of the related party transactions as per applicable Accounting Standard are set out in Note 38
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as on March 31, 2021 are set
out in the financial statements forming part of this report.

Disclosure under Section 43(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, 2013

During the financial year under review, the Company has not issued any shares with differential voting
rights and hence no information as per provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with applicable rules is furnished.

Disclosure under Section 54(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013

During the financial year under review, the Company has not issued any sweat shares and hence no

information as per the provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable
rules is furnished.

Disclosure under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013

Your Company being a private limited company, the disclosure requirements under Section 197(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

Change in the nature of Business, if any

There was no change in the nature of business of your company during the year under review.



16. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

17.

18.

19.

The Board was duly constituted and there was no change in the constitution of directors during the
Financial Year ended 31st March 2021.

The provision of Section 203 relating to appointment of Key Managerial Personnel was not applicable
on the company.

Board Meetings

During the financial Year 2020-2021, the Board of Director of the company met Nine (9) times on
20.04.2020, 29.06.2020, 01.07.2020, 14.08.2020, 01.09.2020, 10.10.2020, 04.12.2020, 12.01.2021 and
15.02.2021 andthe intervening gap between the Meetings was in compliance of the provisions of section
173 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of attendance are given below:

No. of Board Meetings
Director’s Name Held which Director was Attended
entitled to attend
Mukesh Yadav 9 9
Dinesh Nagpal 9 9
Liberatha Peter Kallat 9 9

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the Company confirms
that:-

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with the proper explanations relating to material departures;

b.  the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for
that period;

c. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
the Directors had prepared the annual accounts ongoing concern basis;

e: the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Committees of the Board
During the year under review, the Board was not required to constitute any committees of directors except

the ;Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee which is duly constituted, in compliance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.



20. Statutory Auditors

21.

22

23.

M/sS.S. Kothari Mehta and Company, Chartered Accountants (FRN-000756N) were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 14" September 2021
to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/sWadhwa & Co., Chartered Accountants as
statutory auditors of the company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules made their under, the
tenure of current auditors,M/sWadhwa & Co.Chartered Accountants (FRN-021821N), shall come to an
end at the conclusion of forthcoming AGM.

M/s.8.S. Kothari Mehta and Company, Chartered Accountants, being eligible have consented and
offered themselves for re-appointiment as statutory auditors.

Auditors’ Report

The Audit Reports given by the Statutory Auditors of your Company on the standalone and consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, form part of the Annual Report.

The said reports do not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark, or disclaimer requiring
any explanation or comment from the Board under Section 134(3)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013

. Annual Return

In compliance with the provisions of Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules made thereunder, a copy of the Company’s Annual Return as on March 31, 2021, will be
available on the Investor Relations Section of the website of your Company at www.dreamfolks.in. once
filed with registrar of companies.

Prevention and prohibition of sexual harassment of women at workplace

At Dreamfolks Services Private Limited, we are committed to provide a healthy work environment that
is free of discrimination and unlawful harassment and that enables employees to work without fear of
prejudice, gender bias and sexual harassment. In keeping with this commitment, your Company expressly
and strictly prohibits any form of employee harassment based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin,
age, disability, or status in any group protected by state or local law. The Company has always
endeavoured for providing a better and safe environment free of sexual harassment at all its workplaces.

Your Company had complied with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Rules made thereunder, relating to the
constitution of Internal Complaints Committee and had continued conducting workshops and awareness
programs for sensitizing the employees with the provisions of the Act during the year under review.

For the year ended March 31, 2021, no cases of sexual harassment were reported to the Internal
Complaints Committee constituted by the Company.



24. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy, technology
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo etc. are set out in Annexure-2 which forms part of this
report.

25. Non-applicability of maintenance of cost records
The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder with respect to the business carried on by
the Company.

26. Reporting of Fraud

The Auditors of your Company have not reported any instances of fraud committed in your Company by
its officers or employees as specified under subSection (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

27. Significant and material orders passed by the regulators, courts, or tribunals

There are no significant or material orders passed by the regulators, courts or tribunals which would
impact the going concern status of the Company and its operations in future.

28. Compliance with Secretarial Standards on Board and General Meetings

During the year under review, your Company has complied with the applicable provisions of Secretarial
Standard - 1 and Secretarial Standard - 2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

29. Vigil Mechanism Policy for the Directors and Employees

For the year under review, your Company was not covered within the threshold limits set out under Rule
7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 read with Section 177(9) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

30. Secretarial Auditor
The Company was not required to obtain the Secretarial Audit Report pursuant to Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013, therefore no Secretarial Auditor was appointed during the year.

31. Statement concerning development and implementation of Risk Management Policy of the

Company

The Company and developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy which identifies major risks
which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by our Board and is



also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation process and measures have also been
formulated and clearly spelled out in the said policy.

32. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Company was required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee as it falls
within purview of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same was constituted. The CSR
committee is entrusted with the following roles and responsibilities:

a. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013 (as amended from time to time.

b. Torecommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities in a financial year.

To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.
d. Any other matter as may be considered expedient by the Members of the Committee in
furtherance of and to comply with the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company.

o

The Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is placed on the website of the Company at
www.dreamfolks.in.

33. Acknowledgement and Appreciation

Your directors take this opportunity to thank the customers, employees, investors, vendors, banks,
business associates, regulatory authorities including the various offices of the Central and State
Governments, Reserve Bark of India, the Registrar of Companies for the support, valuable assistance
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trust and confidence and look forward for their continued support in the future.
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Annexure 1
Form AOC-1
{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part "A”: Subsidiarie
{Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)
51 Ne. ST Particulars | Details :
L Name of the subsidiary | Dreamfolks Hospitality |
| Private Limited |
2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if | N/A
different from the holding company’s reporting
_| period iy AR S e
3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate asonthe | N/A
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case
of foreign subsidiaries
4 | Sharecapitalasat310821 __ 1,00,00000
3 | Reserves & surplus asat 31.03.21 e {81,281.00)
6. | Totalassetsas at 31.03.21 84,294.00
=l Total Liabilities as at 31.03.21 84,294.00
8. Investments as at 31.03.21 | NIL
g Turnover for the year ended 31.03.21 | NIL
10. Profit /Loss before taxation for the yearended | {1900)
o 310821 e s e
11. | Provision for taxation for the year ended 31.03.21 | NIL
12, Profit after taxation for the vear ended 31.03.21 | {1900}
_13. | Proposed Dividend for the year ended 31.03.21 | NA
14 Extent of shareholding (in %) asat 31.03.21 90%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

|k Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence | NA
' Operations o L
2 Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated | NA
or sold during the vear.




1.Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: N.A
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the
year: N.A

Place: New Delhi By Order of the Board of
Date: 19.11.2021

Directors .
\ For Dreamfolks Services Private
\M Limited M //l};

Mukesh Yadav Liberatlfd Peter Kallat
(Director) (Managing Director)
DIN: 01105819 D

Address: M-238, Eldeco Mansien,
Sohna Road, Opposite Omaxe mall,
Sector-48, Gurgaon, Haryana-122001,

DIN: 03512187

Address: Flat No. 272, Delhi Apartments,
Plot No. 15C, Sector 22, Dwarka, South West
Delhi, Delhi, 110077

) 0

CFO

FOR S.S. KOTHARI MEHTA AND COMPANY

AENANFNTFUVR SR PANRAT 2NER

Membership No: 087294
Firm Reg No.: 000756N

Address: Flat No. B150], IREO
Grand Arch,Village Ghata,
Sector-58, Gurgaon-122001

N

Dinesh Nagpal
(Director)
DIN: 01105914
Address: H.No. 103, Residency Greens
Greenwood City, Sector 46,
opposite Cyber Park, Gurgaon
Haryana-122003

Rin ‘,‘ ggarwal (
secréfary




Annexure 2
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Particulars, as prescribed by Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Account) Rules, 2014, in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign
exchange earnings and outgo, to the extent applicable to the Company, are given below:

a) Conservation of Energy

(i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

Though your Company does not have energy intensive operation, every endeavour has been made to ensure
the optimal usage of energy, avoid wastage and conserve energy. Due to nationwide lockdown announced
by the Government of India we have transitioned substantial part of the work to be performed by our
employees while working from home resulting in substantial reduction in energy consumption.

(i1) Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy

The Company being a technology company, its operations are not energy intensive, and the energy
consumption and energy costs constitute a very small portion of the total cost. The steps taken by the
Company for utilising alternate sources of energy are not significant.

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment

We constantly evaluate new technologies and makes appropriate investments to be energy efficient for
example using energy efficient equipment and devices, replacing CFL fittings with LEDs fittings to reduce
power consumption, timely preventive maintenance of equipments. The air is conditioned with energy
efficient compressors for central air conditioning and with split air conditioning for localized areas.

b) Research and Development

We have developed our platforms in-house which has enabled us to better manage our service offerings
and improve operating efficiencies by integrating our sales, delivery and service functions.

¢) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The total foreign exchange used and earned by the Company during the year as compared with the previous
year is as follows:

Financial Year ended (in INR)

Tt 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Foreign exchange earnings 18,55,78,928 64,74,08,691
Foreign exchange expenditure 98,32,775 4,05,15,054




	Standalone-Balance-Sheet-March-21 (1)
	02 Audit report of Stansalone Balance Sheet 31st Mar-21
	02 Standalone Balance Sheet 31st Mar-21

	Board Report 2021

